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          1  DEPARTMENT OF SANITATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Good morning, I

          3  am Councilman Stanley Michels, and welcome to the

          4  hearing on the Executive Budget and the Capital

          5  Budget of the Department of Sanitation to the

          6  Committee on Environmental Protection.

          7                 Today we have with us members of the

          8  Committee, Council Member Sabini from Queens,

          9  Provenzano from the Bronx, Fiala from Staten Island

         10  and Freed from Manhattan, Rodriguez from Brooklyn

         11  and Eristoff from Manhattan.

         12                 Good morning, Commissioner. Good

         13  morning, gentlemen. And also Council Member Boyland

         14  from Brooklyn.

         15                 We will be joined from time to time

         16  by other members of the Committee and members from

         17  the Council who have an abiding and all-consuming

         18  interest in the Department of Sanitation.

         19                 COMMISSIONER: Which I share.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Which you share,

         21  Commissioner, and, again, welcome to your first

         22  budget hearing.

         23                 COMMISSIONER: Thank you. A pleasure

         24  to be here.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I understand you
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          2  have a statement?

          3                 COMMISSIONER: Io do.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, any time

          5  you like, identify your associates so we know who is

          6  there.

          7                 COMMISSIONER: Good morning, Chairman

          8  Michels, Chairman Berman, and members of the

          9  Committee on Environmental Protection and Finance. I

         10  am Kevin Farrell, Commissioner of the Department of

         11  Sanitation. I welcome this opportunity to appear

         12  before you today to testify on the budget's expense

         13  and revenue portions of the Executive Budget for

         14  Fiscal Year 2000.

         15                 With me today are First Deputy

         16  Commissioner Michael Carpinello, and Deputy

         17  Commissioners Leslie Allen, Jerry Delacort, Martha

         18  Hirst and Stephen Lawitts, who will join me in

         19  answering questions.

         20                 The Fiscal Year 2000 Executive Budget

         21  allocates $786 million in operating funds to the

         22  Department, and reflects several positive

         23  developments relating to the City's solid waste

         24  management program as follows:

         25                 In fall 1999, the Department will
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          2  award short-term contracts to private vendors to

          3  receive, transfer and export Department managed

          4  refuse from parts of Manhattan, Queens and Staten

          5  Island.

          6                 In Fiscal Year 2000, the export

          7  contract budget will be increased by 3.8 million to

          8  93.3 million. The City is currently exporting

          9  approximately 1,900 tons per day from the Bronx, and

         10  1,900 tons per day from Brooklyn. By the end of

         11  1999, the Department plans to be exporting a total

         12  of about 6,300 tons per day.

         13                 The Department will continue to phase

         14  in its expansion of weekly recycling collection to

         15  all households. Currently 20 districts receive

         16  weekly recycling collection.

         17                 By the end of June 1999, 39 districts

         18  will receive weekly recycling collection. The

         19  Department will complete its expansion making weekly

         20  recycling Citywide by April 2000.

         21                 The Department plans to expand the

         22  use of dual-bin recycling trucks, and in fall 1999,

         23  the Department will expand its leaf and yard waste

         24  composting program by adding all 14 community board

         25  districts in Queens to the three Staten Island, 12

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            6

          1  DEPARTMENT OF SANITATION

          2  Brooklyn and five Bronx Community Board districts

          3  already in the program.

          4                 The Department is currently working

          5  with the Parks Department to identify a site in

          6  Queens where leaves collected from Queens residents

          7  will be composted.

          8                 In addition to funding the core

          9  services provided by the Department, the Fiscal Year

         10  2000 Executive Budget reflects some programmatic

         11  changes, including reduced overtime costs due to the

         12  hiring of additional Sanitation workers in Fiscal

         13  Year '99 to phase in the weekly collection of

         14  recyclable materials Citywide, increasing

         15  enforcement activity and recycling, health and

         16  sanitation areas of compliance, and eliminating two

         17  digging shifts at the Fresh Kills Landfill, as the

         18  third phase of the closure plan is implemented.

         19                 The Department will cease landfilling

         20  at section 6/7 of Freshkills by June 1999, leaving

         21  only section 1/9 as the remaining active section.

         22                 The Fiscal Year 2000 Executive Budget

         23  allocates approximately 75.5 million for the

         24  Department's recycling program. The Department will

         25  use these funds to continue providing residential
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          2  curbside recycling collection services, public

          3  education and outreach, and several waste reduction

          4  recycling and composting initiatives recommended by

          5  the Freshkills Task Force report, including targeted

          6  outreach and public education in multiple languages,

          7  and media communication to the City's lowest

          8  recycling diversion districts, an intensive spring

          9  recycling media campaign, including broadcasts at

         10  network and cable TV stations, advertisements in

         11  newspapers, and the placement of posters in bus

         12  kiosks, subway trains and storefronts, to encourage

         13  recycling and reinforce which materials the

         14  Department collects at curbside with an emphasis on

         15  mixed paper materials.

         16                 Continuation of recycling seminars of

         17  course for building superintendents, co-sponsorship

         18  of the City's Botanical Gardens of 16 compost

         19  give-back events Citywide for the distribution of

         20  compost to residents, and the sale of composting

         21  bins which costs are partially subsidized by the

         22  City.

         23                 To date, in Fiscal Year 1999, the

         24  City has co-sponsored six give-back events and sold

         25  1,024 composting bins. The phased in implementation
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          2  of the New York Stuff Exchange Hot Line, which was

          3  formerly called the Reuse Telephone Hot Line, to

          4  provide New Yorkers with information on how to

          5  donate to or obtain used items from reuse outlets,

          6  such as charitable organizations, thrift shops,

          7  which redistribute used clothing, furniture and

          8  other household items.

          9                 And expansion of the special waste

         10  recycling program, featuring one special waste

         11  collection site in each borough. A contractor will

         12  be responsible for removing and recycling or

         13  disposing of special waste, including motor oil,

         14  motor oil filters, transmission fluid, automotive

         15  and household batteries, latex paint, florescent

         16  light bulbs and thermostats.

         17                 The Fiscal Year 2000 Executive Budget

         18  appropriates approximately $31 million for

         19  Freshkills closure operations and landfill

         20  maintenance funding, including final cover and

         21  leachate treatment and control which has previously

         22  been funded in the capital budget.

         23                 It also allocates 24.1 million for

         24  snow operations. During the 1998/'99 winter season,

         25  the Department spent 14.5 million for snow, ice and
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          2  sanding operations due to eight storms and returned

          3  9 million to the general fund.

          4                 During Fiscal Year 2000, the

          5  Department will continue its current cleaning

          6  strategies to ensure street cleanliness Citywide.

          7  The Department will continue to deploy an average of

          8  450 work experience program participants daily to

          9  street cleaning duties. The Department will perform

         10  intensive street cleaning in problem areas Citywide,

         11  under its current street slots, intensive cleaning

         12  and enforcement program.

         13                 Through the coordinated efforts of

         14  the Mayor's Community Assistance Unit and local

         15  community boards, the Department will provide two

         16  painters to clean and paint sites previously marred

         17  by unsightly graffiti under the Department's current

         18  anti-graffiti program.

         19                 The Department will also continue

         20  working closely with other City agencies to identify

         21  problem properties, coordinate cleaning efforts and

         22  increase enforcement activity in recycling, health

         23  and sanitation areas of compliance.

         24                 The development of the Fiscal Year

         25  2000 Executive Budget represents the
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          2  Administration's continuing commitment to delivering

          3  critical core services to the public, planning for

          4  the City's near-term and long-term waste management

          5  and disposal needs within the context of closing the

          6  Freshkills Landfill by January 1st, 2002, and

          7  improving the quality of life for all New Yorkers.

          8                 My staff and I would be happy to

          9  answer your questions.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         11  much, Commissioner.

         12                 We have been joined by Council Member

         13  Leffler, from Queens. I just wanted to identify

         14  that.

         15                 Just as you were reading your

         16  statement, we have some prepared questions which I

         17  understand have been submitted to you previously

         18  which I like to do, and so we don't have to ask you

         19  to come back and give us answers, you can give us

         20  answers now.

         21                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: It is always a

         22  pleasure to come back.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I understand,

         24  but we would rather get it now.

         25                 But let me ask you something, one of
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          2  the things that is a real problem in this City, and

          3  that is the issue of used tires. I, myself, about a

          4  year ago, I guess I went with Commissioner Stern and

          5  we went out to High Bridge Park, we must have -- not

          6  us, we helped some symbolically, but there must have

          7  been 10,000 used tires there. Is there some program

          8  -- you talk about this special waste recycling

          9  program, and we take in all of these automotive

         10  fluids and household batteries, but what are you

         11  going to do about these tires which everybody sees

         12  all over the place?

         13                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The question of

         14  spare tires has been a vexing one for a long time.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Not spare, used

         16  tires.

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I am sorry.

         18                 In this particular case, because of

         19  its historical significance, I think I will have to

         20  defer it to the First Deputy Commissioner, Michael

         21  Carpinello.

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         23  The Department has a private vendor who is under

         24  contract with us and he removed on average about

         25  250,000 tires a year that are delivered to him or he
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          2  picks them up from our 59 sanitation districts.

          3                 So, we have had a contract for a

          4  number of years. And then if for whatever reason the

          5  contract might lapse and another one doesn't start

          6  yet, the Department picks up the tires themselves,

          7  we shred them and then we take them to the landfill.

          8  But they cannot go to the landfill as a whole tire

          9  any longer, we were prohibited from doing that from

         10  the New York State DEC a few years ago.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, one thing

         12  you should remember, in the Solid Waste Management

         13  Plan, the previous one, we did provide for the tires

         14  to go there but they must be cut up in pieces.

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         16  That's correct.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And once they

         18  cut up they are allowed to be put in there because

         19  they take less room and everything like that.

         20                 But what is the nature of this

         21  contract that you have? Is it in force now?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         23  Yes, it is. Yes, it is.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And what is the

         25  cost of that contract? Do you have any idea? If you
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          2  don't, let me know later.

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          4  I can give you a number, it is somewhere in the

          5  vicinity of about $250,000 a year.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And can you give

          7  us some detail on who the person who is the

          8  contractor and how much that is and when the

          9  contract expires?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         11  Absolutely.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

         13                 You say you employ an average of 450

         14  WEP workers for street cleaning, do you have other

         15  WEP workers, other than for street cleaning?

         16                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The majority of

         17  the WEP workers are involved in street cleaning,

         18  however, there are some who also do custodial or

         19  clerical duties. Some of those who do clerical

         20  duties have been taken off the program, and hired as

         21  clerical employees.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You anticipated

         23  my next question. Because it is supposed to be Work

         24  Experience Programs, they are supposed to be

         25  training people. Can you give me any numbers as to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            14

          1  DEPARTMENT OF SANITATION

          2  how many people have passed through your portals and

          3  how many people you have retained? Full-time

          4  employees, per diem employees or what?

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: There are 50

          6  WEP workers who have been hired in full-time

          7  clerical positions and I might add that

          8  approximately ten of those have been since promoted

          9  to supervisory positions. The next higher clerical

         10  level.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So you found

         12  some very good people?

         13                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Oh, yes,

         14  indeed.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's good. And

         16  are you continuing in that program?

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The program

         18  continues.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: There is some

         20  training involved?

         21                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes, there is

         22  some training, and we are constantly seeking more

         23  WEP workers. They provide a very valuable service,

         24  as you know, for us.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Just as an
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          2  aside, I might want to say parenthetically, we talk

          3  about the street cleaning, we talk about the program

          4  that is checking how clean the streets are by the

          5  Department of Operations, the Division of Operations

          6  in the City of New York -- Mike, what do they call

          7  that program?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          9  Operation Score Card.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Operation Score

         11  Card.

         12                 And we have had some difficulties

         13  with operation Score Card, in that the way they go

         14  about doing their inspections, we had a whole

         15  hearing on it, there was an article written in the

         16  New York Times and we wanted to check it out. And we

         17  found that there were certain discrepancies in the

         18  manner in which they checked, if they found there

         19  were too many cars on the street, they don't check

         20  it, they don't get out of the car. We were all, I

         21  know you are very interested in having clean

         22  streets, and I think you ought to be working, if I

         23  could suggest to you, go over what they have done

         24  and the manner in which they use to inspect and see

         25  if we can't get them to improve it so we can get a
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          2  more realistic view of the cleanliness of the

          3  streets.

          4                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes, the

          5  Operation Score Card Program is one that receives

          6  one of our greatest priorities.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is not your

          8  program, it is the program of Operations.

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, that is

         10  to say in response to their evaluations, and in

         11  addition of course the greatest source of

         12  information is the community itself, and any --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But that doesn't

         14  count.

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Only in terms

         16  of clean streets.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It's good for

         18  you, but when they do evaluations, it is only by

         19  their people going around and evaluating.

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I see.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And I agree with

         22  you, you should count more on that even when you

         23  find out -- as you say, you have special units to go

         24  to certain areas where you find the streets are

         25  dirtier.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Indeed.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And hopefully

          4  not only to clean them up, but they educate the

          5  people of the fact that they can walk up to them and

          6  say, would you please pick up what you just threw, a

          7  carton of cigarettes or an empty cup or something,

          8  just opened the window and just threw it out on the

          9  street, and I just hope there will be more

         10  enforcement and people should get fined for that

         11  heavily.

         12                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I agree

         13  completely. And what we need is more people

         14  involved, as you are.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, it could

         16  be dangerous.

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, we all

         18  have the distance.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But I think it

         20  is important that we evaluate the methodology used

         21  by Operation Score Card, and see if we can get them

         22  to get out of the car and look around and maybe look

         23  underneath the cars if some cars are parked there

         24  and do much on the sidewalk.

         25                 Let me just go back over to your
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          2  statement.

          3                 You are about to award the short-term

          4  contracts to private vendors and you say you expect

          5  the export contract budget will increase by 3.8

          6  million to 9.3 million, but you have not actually

          7  signed those contracts yet?

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That is

          9  correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Is there any

         11  chance that this will have to come up and you will

         12  have to come back to us for a budget mod? Because a

         13  lot of things are going on. Every day you pick up

         14  the papers and some other problems are going on with

         15  respect to export and where they have to go and what

         16  the problems are. Is there enough leeway in this

         17  money to give us an assurance that we have actually

         18  put enough money in for export?

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: To the best of

         20  my estimation and that of my staff, we are well

         21  within the parameters of what you provided, the

         22  budget has provided. We expect to be successful in

         23  the awarding of these contracts without any

         24  additional expenditure.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And what about
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          2  the money for recycling? Do you think it is your

          3  belief you have enough money in there for recycling,

          4  anticipated increase?

          5                 I might say over the weekend I

          6  watched some of the television ads, with the cat and

          7  the bins, and I thought it was very clever and very

          8  attractive, and I hope you are successful in your

          9  programs, and there seems to be a new emphasis on

         10  recycling, which I am pleased about and you might

         11  end up recycling more material than you thought, and

         12  hopefully you will, and is there enough money to do

         13  all of that? Especially the new area which you are

         14  going to go into and by at least September -- I

         15  guess it is April of next year?

         16                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are going to

         18  have the whole City doing recycling.

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: We believe that

         20  the $75 million is adequate for these efforts.

         21                 I might add that you are correct in

         22  terms of the importance of recycling. It was one of

         23  the three primary objectives I mentioned would be my

         24  goals during my tenure, and I believe that recycling

         25  is the way that we will reduce our expenses and
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          2  create a clean environment at the same time.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Now, you say you

          4  anticipate reduced overtime costs to the hiring of

          5  additional sanitation workers, how many new

          6  sanitation workers have you hired? Are they actually

          7  on line now or do you anticipate hiring in the next

          8  fiscal year?

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, we have

         10  already hired them and there are approximately 320.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Three-hundred

         12  twenty sanitation workers.

         13                 And you are talking about increased

         14  enforcement, which I highly approve of and I think

         15  that, and the educational aspect which you haven't

         16  talked about, is something you haven't talked about,

         17  I think hopefully are going to be very effective.

         18  Can you tell me how many, if you hired more

         19  inspectors, or how do you plan to do the increased

         20  enforcement?

         21                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, I think

         22  it is a question, it is a policy decision, to be

         23  truthful, Chairman. Enforcement, while almost the

         24  last resort, is itself a form of education, someone

         25  who gets a summons and there are locations that are
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          2  habitual, non-compliers. We will be focusing on

          3  them, and I believe we have adequate personnel right

          4  now. Should it turn out that we need more personnel,

          5  I would be happy to divert more personnel --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And there is

          7  more money in the budget for that if need be?

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: At the present

          9  time I think we have adequate funds.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The theory being

         11  of phasing a new sanitation district, that we are

         12  going to do it on a borough, that each borough will

         13  be completed, certain boroughs will be completed,

         14  everybody but Queens and Staten Island, or it is

         15  Queens and the Bronx? Queens and -- will all be

         16  finished this fiscal year, by June of this year.

         17                 Refresh my recollection. I know

         18  Queens is not going to be finished.

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: There is a

         20  choice between finishing the Bronx or Queens.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So it is Queens

         22  and Bronx will be finished next fiscal year.

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That's correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: All the other

         25  boroughs will be finished this fiscal year?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That is

          3  correct.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And the idea

          5  being that we do it on a boroughwide basis so we

          6  could make sure that the enforcement and the

          7  advertisement and the education that will take place

          8  in those other -- done on a boroughwide basis?

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That's right.

         10  We don't want to be enforcing in one neighborhood

         11  and then not enforcing in the next neighborhood.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That was the

         13  theory behind it.

         14                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Just an aside

         15  --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Let me just get

         17  an answer to this question.

         18                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Sure, go ahead.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: As a result of

         20  which you are going to be spending more money on

         21  enforcement, as you have done it in the past, you

         22  have had a series, a period of time where you have

         23  done some warning, given people an opportunity to

         24  catch up, educate themselves --

         25                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Absolutely.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And then you

          3  crack down on enforcement.

          4                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Certainly.

          5                 And we phase in the enforcement also.

          6                 But you are right, we give certainly

          7  adequate time for people to become aware.

          8                 It may be that someone doesn't get

          9  the message, I wouldn't deny that, but nevertheless,

         10  as a practical matter, we provide a month or two,

         11  three months I am told.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is an awful

         13  long time.

         14                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, it's a

         15  long time but -- and I just might mention in

         16  passing, although --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I hate to lose

         18  momentum. Momentum is the magic word here.

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Momentum, oh,

         20  yes. Yes. Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And the idea

         22  being that this will only pertain to those districts

         23  that are newly on line with weekly recycling.

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Oh, yes, that

         25  is correct. Once we have given the three months, we
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          2  don't continue that. Three months is it --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right.

          4                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL:-- In the new

          5  district, and then we begin enforcing.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And you continue

          7  to enforce it in the areas that --

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Absolutely. In

          9  fact, we increase the enforcement. I will just give

         10  you a figure, and --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We are not

         12  talking about productivity or quotas, we are talking

         13  about --

         14                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, no. Oh, I

         15  am glad you said we are not talking about quotas.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Or productive.

         17  You know, a rose by any other name.

         18                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But the fact of

         20  the matter is we are trying to educate people. We

         21  would rather not give fines out at all, we just want

         22  them to recycle.

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That is

         24  correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That to an
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          2  extent saves us the money if they do the recycling

          3  properly.

          4                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Correct.

          5                 Just in round figures, we could

          6  generate approximately $600,000 if we gave out

          7  47,000 summonses. Now, 47,000 is a large number, but

          8  if that is what it takes, then that is what it

          9  takes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, we have

         11  some questions from some of the members.

         12                 Council Member Sabini.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Chairman.

         15                 Good morning, Commissioner and staff.

         16  Welcome to what some of us view as an ongoing

         17  process with your budget, some issues are around for

         18  months, some for years, so that many of the things I

         19  ask will have been things that your staff is

         20  familiar with from past questions.

         21                 I am glad to hear you state to the

         22  Chair's question earlier that you are willing to

         23  shift some resources. We have had an ongoing

         24  problem, the Committee has, the Council has, with

         25  overflowing waste baskets and we have put additional
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          2  money into the budget several years in a row,

          3  although that amount diminished slightly for

          4  increased collections.

          5                 The area I represent in Queens West,

          6  if we had a remote camera right now you would see

          7  probably by noon the baskets are overflowing every

          8  single day and it is the garbage version of the

          9  broken window theory, if people see overflowing

         10  baskets, they throw more garbage next to the basket.

         11  And yet, once again, in the executive budget that

         12  additional money for special collections is removed.

         13  I am just wondering how, especially in light of the

         14  fact that you anticipate $680,000 in new revenue for

         15  enforcement, or for revenue from enforcement, that

         16  you would find a way to pick up the baskets more

         17  frequently since again, in areas like mine, because

         18  of illegal occupancies and housing, because of

         19  tourism, because of a myriad of things, instead of

         20  candy wrappers we have bags of garbage filling up

         21  our baskets.

         22                 And since you have got this new

         23  revenue in the budget, it sort of disturbed me this

         24  year that in addition to cutting back the special

         25  collection in the proposed executive budget that you
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          2  have new revenue, and I am wondering why can't you

          3  do both, use the revenue to keep the level of

          4  collection that we had at the last fiscal year?

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well,

          6  certainly, Council member, as you know, you are more

          7  familiar with the budget process than I am, but we

          8  do know that the allocation of funds is kind of a

          9  tug of war between one goal and another.

         10                 As you noted, and as I stated

         11  earlier, I am quite willing and in fact eager for

         12  the opportunity to shift resources to where they are

         13  needed. I can't promise you until I see the

         14  situation but I would be happy to go with you

         15  personally on a tour of the area and look at these

         16  overflowing baskets which I have no doubt you have

         17  observed --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Your folks in

         19  Queens West do a great job. We didn't want to try

         20  the same trick as we did in past years, but one year

         21  I came to a budget hearing with Commissioner Doherty

         22  with timed photos of baskets to show that they

         23  overflow throughout the day, that even with special

         24  collection they are often filled within two hours

         25  after the collection.
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          2                 At the Preliminary budget hearing I

          3  asked about the $88,000 regarding DOS' anti-graffiti

          4  pilot project. Now that the project has been

          5  underway for a number of months, do you have any

          6  information on the effectiveness of that project?

          7                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: In this

          8  particular case I would have to defer to one of my

          9  staff.

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         11  The program has been very effective. We worked with

         12  the Mayor's Office Community Assistance Unit and the

         13  local community boards and removed graffiti from a

         14  number of locations from public and private in all

         15  five boroughs, and the program, now that the weather

         16  is getting warmer, and we can start repainting

         17  facilities and size the walls, the program is

         18  getting back up in earnest. So the program is

         19  working very well.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Do you have

         21  any idea how many locations you have cleaned up

         22  until now?

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         24  Approximately about 150 to 200 locations.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: When does the
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          2  pilot project become an ongoing program?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          4  Well, it started out as a pilot and I think once

          5  more funds become available, the program could be

          6  expanded to other boroughs and each borough can have

          7  its own graffiti truck and crew.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: In the prior

          9  hearing we had a discussion about Operation Bravo,

         10  and I am just wondering if that has continued to be

         11  something that the Department is going to do?

         12                 For those on the Committee that don't

         13  know, that is the use of sanitation trucks and

         14  personnel as, using my terms, human shields in front

         15  of the federal courthouse, in which we get federal

         16  reimbursement from; are we going to continue to do

         17  that?

         18                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I certainly

         19  hope not.

         20                 My understanding is that that was an

         21  emergency procedure, and of course having some

         22  experience in that other agency, that other agency,

         23  I was aware that there was some initiatives, some

         24  plans, to erect permanent or at least movable

         25  barriers that would certainly take the place of our
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          2  trucks.

          3                 I personally would like to see the

          4  trucks removed.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: I think we can

          6  find better use for our sanitation personnel. But we

          7  are getting paid for it so I guess that has been a

          8  good excuse.

          9                 The IBO issued a report on

         10  productivity which showed that New York City, based

         11  on two different surveys, the cost for a ton of

         12  refuse collection in New York City was over $108 a

         13  ton, the national average was 62 and a half dollars

         14  a ton, the largest city average, a city of over a

         15  million people, was at $78 a ton, and in deed lots

         16  of cities, some large, some small, come in way under

         17  -- Charlotte $18 a ton, SanDiego, which has a

         18  relatively large city, $45 a ton. Houston, which is

         19  I guess now the third largest city in America, or

         20  fourth largest city in America, $91 a ton. Do you

         21  see the study, and do you have any thoughts as to

         22  why it is we are so out of whack with the rest of

         23  the country?

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, I am

         25  aware of the study, and I have seen the budget
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          2  office's report. Unfortunately, I don't have a

          3  comprehensive response for you at this time.

          4  However, a preliminary look at it indicates that

          5  there are some -- this is the olds apples and

          6  oranges, perhaps apples and grapefruit comparison.

          7  There are some major differences between the way we

          8  collect and some of these other cities.

          9                 For instance, I believe in Chicago

         10  they use an automated loader, that is they don't

         11  physically pick up -- well, they physically pick it

         12  up but not by the human hands, they have trucks

         13  specifically equipped to do that.

         14                 Then of course there is the

         15  collections, they collect once a week, rather than

         16  as we do twice a week, three times in some cases.

         17                 I think one of the major differences

         18  also is that several of these cities do not recycle

         19  at the point of collection. I don't know if they

         20  recycle at all to be truthful, but they do not do it

         21  upon collection. And that adds to our costs also.

         22                 So, at this point, beyond those

         23  obvious differences, I can't say that I have a

         24  comprehensive response, but I would be happy to

         25  provide one as soon as we put one together, and we
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          2  are working on that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: In New York's

          4  defense, actually Chicago comes in higher than we

          5  do, and they are not cited as using automatic

          6  loaders in the study, although they might for all I

          7  know. It just struck me as ironic that we come in at

          8  a level and some of that is probably due to

          9  collective bargaining, but the irony to me was that

         10  the Council, the Administration, Public Advocate,

         11  all decried how the private cost of pick-up and I

         12  know there are representatives to some of the

         13  consumer-related businesses here today, was so out

         14  of whack with the rest of the country and now it

         15  turns out that our public collection is not as out

         16  of whack but certainly in the scope of things

         17  significantly higher than the national average and

         18  higher than the average of even very large cities.

         19  So, I thought that this was a problem that should be

         20  looked at and I thought the IBO was on target in

         21  pointing out the large discrepancy.

         22                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you,

         23  Commissioner.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Council Member

         25  Leffler.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Thank you.

          3                 Good morning. Are you familiar with

          4  the decree pursuant to which it is required that

          5  3,400 tons per day be recycled by I think it is July

          6  14th, 1999?

          7                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes, I am.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Will this

          9  budget permit the Sanitation Department to comply

         10  with that requirement?

         11                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The budget

         12  permits that, yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Will the City

         14  in fact recycle 3,400 tons per day by then?

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I am told that

         16  despite our best efforts, and we do pick up

         17  everything that is out there, that we have not yet,

         18  and really stand no chance of meeting that goal by

         19  the end of the next two months.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: How many tons

         21  a day are being recycled?

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: About 2,500.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: About 2,500.

         24  So, what did you mean when you said it permits it

         25  but we will not be doing it? What do we need to do
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          2  to in fact comply with the law?

          3                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: In order to

          4  increase the amount of recyclables, the recyclables

          5  have to be put out. That is to say that I have to

          6  increase both education and enforcement in order to

          7  get it.

          8                 But as it is put out, we do pick it

          9  up.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: I know that.

         11  The point is the Administration is under a legal

         12  requirement, so presumably you have the strategy

         13  that you believe will be effective to comply with

         14  the law, so how will you in fact bring the City into

         15  compliance with the responsibility being given to

         16  the Sanitation Department?

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, as you

         18  know, Council Member, the law has provided a

         19  specific benchmark.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: No, it is

         21  not, it is a requirement. You should read it

         22  carefully.

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: All right. It

         24  is a requirement.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Right.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I didn't mean

          3  to indicate it was not a requirement. A question of

          4  semantics perhaps.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: It is not a

          6  question of semantics, it is a question of law.

          7                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: My semantics.

          8  All right.

          9                 Thirty-four hundred tons, if it is

         10  out there I will pick it up. If it is not out there,

         11  Council Member, I cannot pick it up.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: No but what

         13  you need to do is to develop a strategy pursuant to

         14  which it will be out there and you will pick it up.

         15  I mean, I would think that a significant part of

         16  your time would be to develop a strategy that you

         17  believe will be successful and I haven't heard what

         18  it is yet. What you are doing is setting forth a

         19  number of different matters that you can discuss

         20  with us for an hour and a half and then go away and

         21  not comply with the law.

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, not at all.

         23  The strategy is education and enforcement.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Why should we

         25  have confidence that in fact you will bring the City
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          2  into compliance with the law which applies as of

          3  July 14th? I mean, to give me labels, you know,

          4  enforcement education, those are words, what will

          5  convince us, what convinces us, what convinces you,

          6  that in fact you will be in compliance with the law

          7  as it applies at that time?

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I believe that

          9  the weekly recycling, as it is expanded will in fact

         10  help us in that regard.

         11                 I can't tell the future, Council

         12  Member, I don't know how much they are going to put

         13  out. Weekly recycling.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: You know the

         15  Administration testified when we were dealing with

         16  that, that in fact you didn't think there would be a

         17  significant increase in the total amount of

         18  recyclables, it would just be collected on a weekly,

         19  rather than a biweekly basis. So, you know, these

         20  strike me as being professions without conviction.

         21                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I didn't do

         22  that testimony.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Moving on, it

         24  seems to me that one ought not to have confidence

         25  that in fact you will discharge this mandate.
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          2                 I have given you the opportunity and

          3  I am not convinced, and I don't know that anybody

          4  else ought to be convinced by this.

          5                 By the end of the Year 2001, there

          6  will have to be contracts to take all of the refuse

          7  of the City that is not being recycled, I take it.

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Okay.

         10                 What gives us confidence that in fact

         11  this will be achieved?

         12                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The preliminary

         13  contract negotiations.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Could you

         15  explain?

         16                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I believe that

         17  we have the potential to pick up more than we need

         18  to have picked up. I believe that the bids submitted

         19  both in the short term and the longer term, in terms

         20  of putting in this plan into effect will pick up

         21  everything and transport everything we need to be

         22  transported.

         23                 The immediate contracts we are

         24  involved in now may in fact exceed our goal for this

         25  year. I can't be sure until they are awarded.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Okay.

          3                 And how does this relate to the

          4  points Mr. Sabini made with respect to the

          5  productivity of waste disposal in New York City,

          6  vis-a-vis elsewhere?

          7                 I mean, under economic theory I think

          8  everything can be done for a price, so presumably if

          9  the City is willing to spend enough money at this

         10  point it can get, you know, refuse picked up and

         11  disposed of. The question is whether it is done on a

         12  cost efficient manner.

         13                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: And that is

         14  what the negotiation is about.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: So where will

         16  this leave us? If you believe that all will be

         17  disposed of pursuant to these contracts and what

         18  price in terms of --

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Excuse me for a

         20  second, I have to put my glasses on.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Sure.

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Let me defer

         23  it.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: (Not

         25  identified for the record.) The budget provides that

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            39

          1  DEPARTMENT OF SANITATION

          2  the year in which all of the tonnage is forecast to

          3  be exported, the additional cost to the City will be

          4  $171 million.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Right. And in

          6  terms of the relationship of our costs to other

          7  cities' costs that Councilman Sabini was referring

          8  to, how will our disposal costs relate to others if

          9  we spend that additional $171 million?

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, as I

         11  said, Council Member, I don't have a complete

         12  analysis of that report.

         13                 However, I believe, and I am sure you

         14  will agree, that if we pick up twice as often, and

         15  if we recycle, it is going to cost us more to pick

         16  up.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: I know.

         18                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: So, in those

         19  respects I would say where we pick up, in comparison

         20  to cities who pick up less often, and who do not

         21  recycle, we will certainly pay more.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: There is a

         23  reference to special waste stations for disposal of

         24  hazardous waste?

         25                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Could you

          3  explain how that is going to operate? I mean, are

          4  they going to open on a continuing basis all the

          5  time to take in the special waste that is referred

          6  to say in the Preliminary Budget message?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          8  Well, as you know, we have one operating right now

          9  and have so for about a year and a half in Staten

         10  Island. We expect in the next fiscal year to have

         11  one in each of the other four boroughs, and it will

         12  be phased in, there will be a private contractor

         13  that will run them, just the way they are running

         14  them out in Staten Island right now, to take the

         15  products that currently are delivered there.

         16                 So, it will be phased in in each of

         17  the other four boroughs over the next fiscal year.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: And then it

         19  will be open say every day?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         21  They are open every day from ten to about 5:30.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Okay, thank

         23  you. Except the weekends?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         25  They are open on the weekends also.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Okay. With

          3  respect to your snow budget, there are figures in

          4  here as to what your snow budget is going to be. In

          5  calculating that, did we include the winter of '96,

          6  of Fiscal Year '96?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          8  Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Okay, that is

         10  part of the reason for the significant increase I

         11  take it this year, okay.

         12                 Are there any reductions that we

         13  ought to know about? Often we see at the end of the

         14  preliminary budget message, you know, savings that

         15  are proposed or reductions, I haven't heard any

         16  references or read any references to those.

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, there was

         18  the 9 million given back from the snow budget.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: I mean for

         20  next fiscal year.

         21                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Reductions.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Right,

         23  reductions.

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Budgetary

         25  reductions.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: You might

          3  call them productivity savings.

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          5  Some of the reductions were the decrease in the

          6  collection for the Housing Authority.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Right.

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          9  And a decrease in the collection to the schools.

         10  Those both total to about $6 million.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: The decrease

         12  in the collections to the schools will have what

         13  impact on collections from all of the schools?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         15  We feel that the schools --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: First the

         17  facts. How are you reducing it?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         19  Well, the schools right now get an additional five

         20  times a week collection, in addition to the normal

         21  frequency that the rest of the community board gets.

         22  So, by this reduction going into effect by July 1st,

         23  they will get reduced to either two or three times a

         24  week, and it will bring them in line --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: The same
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          2  thing that the rest of the community --

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          4  CARPINELLO:-- That the community board gets, that's

          5  correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Why are you

          7  doing that insofar as -- this is a Council add-on,

          8  is it not?

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         10  Yes, it is.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: I believe it

         12  is because we found that there is so much put out in

         13  the schools that they really need to be picked up

         14  every day, and if we don't pick up every day we are

         15  not going to -- first they will be unsightly, messed

         16  up, kids knock the stuff over and the like.

         17                 And second of all, there won't be the

         18  recycling and the like, for example, if in fact it

         19  is not picked up.

         20                 How much money are we talking about,

         21  first of all?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Also, while you

         23  are looking that up, as an aside if we are going to

         24  try to put in the curriculum the idea of recycling,

         25  it appears to me that they should set an example,
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          2  recycling and disposing of that stuff. If the kids

          3  see the stuff laying around there and not being

          4  picked up, it really goes against everything you are

          5  trying to do in the schools why way of training the

          6  children to recycle.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: What in fact

          8  we found is that there just isn't the recycling when

          9  there isn't the pick-ups. I mean, that is what I

         10  have been told for years. One of the reasons there

         11  wasn't recycling in the schools is they just simply

         12  said we have no room for all of this stuff, it's not

         13  picked up.

         14                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Let me just

         15  address perhaps two disparate thoughts here. First

         16  of all, in terms of the monetary savings, the New

         17  York City Housing Authority reduction eliminated

         18  approximately 1,400,000 in overtime, and the school

         19  collection reduction is another 4,240,000 in

         20  overtime. So that is one thought.

         21                 Another, and as I said, completely

         22  separate thought, is that both of those institutions

         23  are among the most flagrant violators in terms of

         24  recycling, and --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: What does
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          2  that mean? How is it flagrant violators?

          3                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: It means that

          4  they don't recycle.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Right, and

          6  they are going to recycle less if you don't pick it

          7  up.

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, if they

          9  don't recycle under the present system, we thought

         10  that there was a greater incentive for them to

         11  recycle under the system that everyone else is

         12  under.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: No. In fact,

         14  what we have been told about, we were in the Police

         15  Department for a number of years, we have been

         16  dealing with recycling and what we are told is the

         17  reason why you in fact have not gotten adequate

         18  recycling in the schools is because it is just not

         19  picked up with the consequence --

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: It is not

         21  separated, Council member. It is not that it is not

         22  picked up, it is not separated.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: It is not

         24  separated because there is no place for it. There is

         25  no place for it. I mean, when it was being picked
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          2  up, like the rest of the community, a lot of the

          3  schools simply said to us there is no reason to

          4  recycle, we have no room for it. We have no room for

          5  it. And that is the reason why they weren't

          6  recycling.

          7                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: It may be.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Well, that is

          9  what we have been told for years.

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: It may be that

         11  part of the problem, or part of the dilemma facing

         12  the schools, that there was not that weekly

         13  recycling opportunity, we hope that of course there

         14  will be, and we know there will be weekly recycling

         15  opportunity and we will monitor the situation.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is the

         17  intention of this Committee to have that money put

         18  back in, the collections at NYCHA, as we did last

         19  year, and in the schools. What we want from you is

         20  the intention to utilize that money and do the

         21  pick-ups if the money is there.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Does it have

         23  to be done on overtime still? You are taking on more

         24  sanitation --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Can I get an
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          2  answer to my question, Mr. Leffler?

          3                 If we put that money back in, we want

          4  to make sure it is spent.

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I will commit

          6  to spending the money as you intended.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you.

          8                 Mr. Leffler. You were asking about

          9  overtime.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Right. Do you

         11  still have to in fact do this all on overtime? That

         12  seems to me to be wasteful, particularly with

         13  additional sanitation men.

         14                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, because

         15  it is an anomaly. It is much easier to plan things,

         16  you know, when you do things on a routine basis.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: It could be

         18  perfectly routine. You could pick it up every day.

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: It's a

         20  digression from the systematic pick-up. The

         21  systematic pick-up is the community's pick-up.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: But I mean,

         23  you shouldn't be so hamstrung by this addition that

         24  in fact you say, well, this is a diversion from the

         25  usual, as a result we are going to add overtime. You
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          2  have additional sanitation men, why not work out the

          3  route from a neighboring community district that has

          4  pick-ups on that day so that the sanitation men pick

          5  up at the schools without paying them overtime.

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, the

          7  deployment and utilization of the sanitation workers

          8  is one that is an ongoing continual process.

          9                 And as you know, I believe that the

         10  Sanitation Department is probably among the most

         11  systemic and regulated organized agency in the City

         12  in terms of the service they provide.

         13                 The trash, the garbage, the

         14  recyclables, whatever, is out there. We pick it up.

         15  We pick it up in the most efficient manner.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: This

         17  obviously is not consistent with that general

         18  principal, if you pick it up on the basis of

         19  overtime, even though --

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I said in the

         21  most efficient manner. In this case if you digress

         22  from the system, any digression costs you money.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Well, but

         24  that is the point.

         25                 I mean, you are not going to convince
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          2  me that the Sanitation Department picks up in the

          3  most efficient manner when, in fact, I have followed

          4  the pick-ups by the Sanitation Department year after

          5  year after year, including when sanitation workers

          6  were not picking up seven hours a day, to put it

          7  conservatively.

          8                 So, I mean you are not going to

          9  convince me that in fact your agency is the most

         10  efficient. I mean, like every other agency, there

         11  can be improvements at the least.

         12                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, I didn't

         13  say there couldn't be improvements, there certainly

         14  could be.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: You referred

         16  to improvements in waste reduction without

         17  specifying what --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Leffler, you

         19  have been on for awhile, can I give someone else a

         20  chance, and then you can come back for a second

         21  round? But I just want to put a cap on that.

         22                 These 320 additional Sanitation

         23  workers you are going to be putting on, will that

         24  help reduce that overtime we have been talking

         25  about?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: It certainly

          3  will. Absolutely. The more personnel we can hire and

          4  put on the rolls, would reduce over time.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Ms. Boyland. I

          6  will mention the fact that we are joined by Mr.

          7  Carrion is here, he was here two minutes ago, and we

          8  did have Council Member Quinn from Manhattan, and as

          9  I said, Mr. Carrion from the Bronx.

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Thank you, Mr.

         11  Chairman.

         12                 I am just reflecting back on your

         13  statement, Commissioner, where my colleague was

         14  bringing a reference to the reduced overtime cost

         15  due to hiring of additional sanitation workers, in

         16  FY '99 to phase in weekly collection of recyclable

         17  materials Citywide. And then as I was, and correct

         18  me if I am wrong, I was looking at the Executive

         19  Budget hearing filings, the Fiscal Year 2000

         20  Preliminary Budget included an overtime reduction,

         21  resulting from accelerated hiring of Sanitation

         22  workers, and you go on to say a class of 150

         23  Sanitation workers were hired in December of '98,

         24  170 workers were hired in March of '99. This action

         25  generated a savings of 1.1 million in Fiscal Year
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          2  '99, 6.2 million in Fiscal Year 2000, and 4.1

          3  million in Fiscal Year 2001.

          4                 I think there are 10,000 employees

          5  that actually worked for the Sanitation Department

          6  and that includes the uniformed Sanitation workers

          7  and maybe the collection and cleaning workers. You

          8  budget should add up, and correct me if I am wrong,

          9  maybe a half a million dollars just on operation

         10  pieces.

         11                 If you are doing the hiring and you

         12  are cutting back on the overtime, do you anticipate

         13  that you are going to be doing a lot more hiring

         14  since I assume it is cost effective not to have

         15  people work overtime than to hire 320 new workers

         16  within the last fiscal, it would have been the last

         17  year. And where does the 450 WEP workers actually

         18  fall into this, since you noted to the chairman,

         19  that you hired 50 of them for clerical and

         20  janitorial situations and things of that nature? So,

         21  give me some feedback on how you anticipate to see

         22  your budget hiring for Fiscal Year 2001 and on, with

         23  the increase in the recycling, the weekly recycling

         24  and the restored budget that my colleague talks

         25  about for the New York City housing and the Board of
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          2  Education?

          3                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, at the

          4  present time, the personnel strength of this

          5  Department is of course met.

          6                 We have approximately 6,000 --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Is it 6,000

          8  or 10,000 employees?

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, it is

         10  7,000 uniformed and approximately 2,200 --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Collection

         12  and cleaners.

         13                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Civilians.

         14                 There are no, although we just gave a

         15  test, there was just a test and the test is in

         16  anticipation of future needs.

         17                 We do not have a plan to hire

         18  additional Sanitation workers in the near future.

         19                 Obviously you have a choice, there is

         20  no such thing as having too many workers in an

         21  agency, although I would like to be in that position

         22  just once.

         23                 So, when you have peak demand or

         24  special programs or some --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Like the
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          2  weekly recycling piece.

          3                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: A change in

          4  policy, certainly.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Right.

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That will

          7  certainly add additional demands, and in fact it may

          8  generate overtime.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I thought you

         10  said you cut 1.5 million in overtime?

         11                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: By hiring of

         12  individuals, but then of course now we go to an

         13  additional task, or picking up more often. It may in

         14  fact, there is only so much work that can be done by

         15  a limited number of people, and it may be that we

         16  need more workers and we will assess that as we go

         17  along. Overtime meets those needs in between, in the

         18  gaps between the hiring.

         19                 I am not so sure that I have answered

         20  your question, perhaps you could restate something

         21  that I missed.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I just want

         23  to know, with the anticipation of the restorations

         24  that the City Council may put in, and the weekly

         25  recycling, do you anticipate that you have the
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          2  manpower necessary to move forward with what we are

          3  planning to do within the next fiscal budget?

          4                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Certainly, I

          5  do, yes. At this moment indeed, yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: And your

          7  policy on the 450 WEP workers, 50 were hired, is

          8  this inclusive of the 2,200 collection, civilian

          9  people that are there now?

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: It is

         12  inclusive of it.

         13                 And just give me some feedback on

         14  what exactly the WEP workers, their responsibilities

         15  and duties are right now.

         16                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, the

         17  majority are involved in street cleaning.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: That is the

         19  anti-graffiti piece and all of that?

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Sweeping

         21  actually. Sweeping the streets.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: And this is

         23  job training?

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, I believe

         25  that it's job training to a certain degree, yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I think we

          3  all have our opinions on whether it is a WEP worker

          4  situation.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Commissioner,

          6  you ought to mention the fact that you have hired

          7  50.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Yes, he said

          9  that.

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: This is a

         11  process where the Sanitation Department of course is

         12  in the business of Sanitation. If you give us

         13  workers, then we use them in the most appropriate

         14  fashion for the agency.

         15                 At the same time we provide kind of

         16  an evaluation and opportunity for limited numbers to

         17  move into clerical positions, as is evidenced by

         18  what we have done.

         19                 Now, in addition, of course once they

         20  are in that position, having been hired as clerical

         21  workers, we further evaluate -- they are part of our

         22  family, our employee force, and they have been in

         23  fact promoted.

         24                 Now, can I say that all people who

         25  start off with this are going to follow that path?
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          2  No. A great number go on to other agencies, but --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Do you

          4  consider 50 to be a high number for the Department

          5  of Sanitation?

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, it is

          7  over ten percent. I mean, you know, we have placed

          8  35 additional into private industry. I mean, this is

          9  an ongoing process.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: We will have

         11  our guests throughout this hearing, different

         12  opinions on the WEP work in process.

         13                 Thank you, Commissioner.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: One of the

         15  things I wanted to ask you also while I was thinking

         16  about it, is that in the interim plan that you are

         17  about to sign contracts on will start during, and I

         18  guess it has started to a certain extent, over the

         19  next fiscal year; is that correct?

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes, October

         21  '99.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That being the

         23  case, and of course you have heard the testimony, or

         24  you know about the testimony, of the fact that a lot

         25  of these neighborhoods are very bothered, as I am
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          2  sure you will hear from Mr. Rodriguez when he gets

          3  to ask some questions.

          4                 But my question to you, from a fiscal

          5  point of view, is whether or not you have planned

          6  adequately to monitor the operations of that

          7  contract and the contractors who will be under it,

          8  see to it that some of the horror stories that we

          9  are anticipating do not occur, namely they use the

         10  right routes, they remove the waste in a timely

         11  basis and we don't have the problems that we are

         12  very fearful of, which is the reason why so many of

         13  us want the retrofitting of the MTSs and are anxious

         14  to go into the long-term plan before so that we

         15  don't have that problem.

         16                 But what are you doing about

         17  anticipating in October, as you say, the

         18  implementation of the interim plan?

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, aside

         20  from our normal monitoring procedures.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: These are going

         22  to be extra duties.

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That's right.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And it is going

         25  to be a lot of work and a lot of additional trucks
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          2  that are going to be used.

          3                 I am sure you understand what is

          4  going on.

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Oh, absolutely.

          6                 And your concerns are well grounded.

          7  We share them. In Fiscal Year '99 we will have 50

          8  additional positions at the cost of about $2

          9  million, monitoring those --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What will their

         11  titles be?

         12                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: There is a

         13  whole system --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Will you tell us

         15  how many you have on staff now? How many additional

         16  people, what their titles are and what the costs

         17  will be, as well as, if you can tell us what

         18  training they will have.

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: We have 50

         20  people on right now, it is a combination of a

         21  civilian workforce and uniformed workforce.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The 50 now, it

         23  is their job to monitor the private carters?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         25  They are to monitor the contracts we have in place.
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          2  In Fiscal '97 and '98 we put in export contracts,

          3  and we got funding for personnel for contract

          4  management for both of those years, and those

          5  personnel are comprised of uniformed people who are

          6  on site at the private transfer stations that

          7  monitor the loads coming in, make sure that the

          8  loads are what they are supposed to be delivered,

          9  and also that the operation of the transfer stations

         10  be done properly.

         11                 At headquarters and in the borough

         12  commands we have accountants, we have analysts who

         13  account for the tickets because we are paying for

         14  every ton that goes over scale. So we have

         15  administrative and analytical personnel that go over

         16  the receipts making sure that they are proper and

         17  accurate and when they get submitted for billing to

         18  pay the vendor for having received the material from

         19  us. Those 50 people are made up of field inspectors,

         20  as well as people at headquarters and in the borough

         21  commands that monitor the receipts making sure that

         22  people get paid properly and don't get paid any more

         23  or any less.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, what about,

         25  is the money coming from our budget or is it coming
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          2  from the contractors?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          4  No, it is money that has been put in our OTPS budget

          5  to pay the vendor for tonnage --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is tax levy

          7  money?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          9  That's correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is not

         11  something that we are making the vendors pay for?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         13  No, no, we --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I misunderstood

         15  you, I just wanted to make sure of that.

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         17  Right.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Now, is there

         19  additional training going on in these new 50 people

         20  coming on?

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         22  Well, yes, they are trained -- first of all, when we

         23  hire them they come with accounting backgrounds and

         24  analytical backgrounds, but then we train them.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, that is
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          2  the money point of view.

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          4  That's correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What I am asking

          6  about is checking out to make sure, number one, that

          7  the transfer stations are adequately monitored,

          8  which I think you have said. What I didn't hear you

          9  say is anything about making sure that the routes

         10  taken are the proper routes. Because these routes

         11  are all laid out, they take certain routes, and if

         12  the trucks operate properly, number one, are

         13  properly inspected to see that they are adequate for

         14  safety purposes, we don't want any bad breaks or

         15  things like that, and whether we do that and whether

         16  or not they are properly sealed or they don't have

         17  any of the waste coming out on the streets as they

         18  go by.

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         20  They assist in training the uniformed supervisors

         21  who are at the site and who are watching our trucks

         22  delivering the material, as well as the private

         23  vendors transfer trailers leaving the station and

         24  leaving the state, making sure that they adhere to

         25  truck routes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, and how do

          3  you know they adhere to truck routes, you actually

          4  follow them out?

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          6  Follow them. Follow them, yes. And we give summonses

          7  also. And we watch our own trucks. Our own

          8  Sanitation trucks have to adhere to specified routes

          9  because that was part of the environmental review

         10  process.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right.

         12                 And let me ask you this, you find

         13  that there is a lot of violations as far as the

         14  presently existing contracts are concerned?

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         16  No, I think we do a good job of monitoring them, and

         17  the violations, while there have been some, have

         18  been very few.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: All right. I am

         20  sure Mr. Rodriguez will have other questions.

         21                 Council Member Provenzano.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you,

         23  Mr. Chairman.

         24                 Congratulations, Commissioner, on

         25  your new appointment. I think.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: So far so good,

          3  thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Just to

          5  follow up a little bit on Councilman Michels'

          6  question, I know the Department of Sanitation does a

          7  tremendous job in educating the private citizens as

          8  far as recycling, street cleaning, what have you.

          9  The commercial areas that are picked up by private

         10  sanitation, what is being done to educate the

         11  commercial, the store owners? Do they get the same

         12  type of -- because it has kind of been my

         13  observation, watching stores that put out their

         14  waste for collection, that a lot of these private

         15  contractors don't separate, I mean they collect

         16  everything, everything goes into the truck. So, what

         17  happens? Is there a point at which it is then

         18  separated?

         19                 There seems to be an inequity. And

         20  believe me, I am totally for recycling, but we

         21  really, really get on our residents, our apartment

         22  building owners, and I would assume, I may be

         23  incorrect, that a great proportion, probably more

         24  so, is picked up in the commercial areas.

         25                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, I can of
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          2  course give you a partial answer and I may have to

          3  defer to Deputy Commissioner Lawitts.

          4                 Obviously the store owner, the store

          5  manager, receives in the course of his or her normal

          6  day, receives the same kind of education that we

          7  provide to every other citizen.

          8                 I mean, we put ads in the papers, we

          9  have ads on trucks, on television, the education

         10  program that is directed toward the general

         11  population would, I hope, be also observed by those

         12  commercial people.

         13                 In addition, I have to say that we

         14  must rely on our enforcement program for the

         15  commercial store owner. And we have made some direct

         16  in-roads on those unsightly conditions that you

         17  mentioned by addressing the issue of these dumpsters

         18  that they used to put out.

         19                 As to the private contractor,

         20  however, I am told they do recycle, but in terms of

         21  checking on that, I am not so sure that I could

         22  justify that.

         23                 Perhaps Michael or Steve would like

         24  to go a little further in this particular juncture,

         25  because I really don't have the background.
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          3  In working with the commercial establishments, the

          4  private carters who pick up from the commercial

          5  establishments get a license from the Trade Waste

          6  Commission, and part of the information that they

          7  receive when they are getting that permit is the

          8  requirements, what their requirements are as it

          9  relates to recycling material, both the paper and

         10  the metal glass.

         11                 Also, we work with the real estate

         12  boards. The real estate boards have working

         13  relationships with the various commercial

         14  establishments and we work through them and we pass

         15  along educational material, and as the Commissioner

         16  says, when all of that fails, all of that outreach

         17  fails, we have enforcement, and we have a small

         18  group of Sanitation police officers that work

         19  nights, that is when most of the businesses close

         20  and we inspect their sites to see in fact have they

         21  separated their material and where they don't we

         22  give them summonses.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Because it

         24  appears that when these private trucks come to

         25  collect, it is not like when you come to collect on
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          2  my block, you know, you can see, it is very obvious

          3  that the items are separate, the private guys just

          4  seem to throw everything in the truck, so at what

          5  point does that get separated? It may start out that

          6  way, but it may not end up that way.

          7                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: You are quite

          8  right. You are quite right.

          9                 We did start off with a discussion of

         10  the independent budget office, and I did say in

         11  relation to that subject that in some of these other

         12  cities the recycling is not done as we do it at the

         13  point of collection, but rather done by the

         14  collection agency or in the transfer station or

         15  something like that.

         16                 There is of course always the

         17  economic incentive. These are commercial

         18  establishments and hopefully they are out to make a

         19  profit, and if they can dispose of their waste,

         20  particularly paper, in a profitable way, they will.

         21                 Other than that, we rely on

         22  enforcement and monitoring and it is an area, as I

         23  believe Council Member Leffler mentioned earlier,

         24  there is always room for improvement, this is

         25  certainly one of them.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay. Just

          3  a question on hazardous material, household

          4  hazardous waste. Is that the same as special wastes

          5  or?

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes, the

          7  diabetic needle, that kind of thing.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Right.

          9                 And how is that disposed of in a

         10  private household? I mean you can't put that in with

         11  any of the kinds of garbage we have so far.

         12                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Anyone who is

         13  habitually using this kind, and it has to be, you

         14  know, generally it is long-term usage. They are

         15  receiving instructions as to where to bring it, but

         16  it is incumbent on them to bring this kind of waste.

         17  There is no -- I mean, at this point if we have a

         18  diabetic person in an apartment, there is no way for

         19  me to tell how they dispose of their needs.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Mike, you

         21  look like you want to say something.

         22                 Also, Operation Bravo. Councilman

         23  Sabini touched on it, I don't have the foggiest idea

         24  what it is.

         25                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: It is a
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          2  security provision. The Sanitation Department,

          3  because of the equipment, the nature of the

          4  equipment, we have these large trucks, we fill them

          5  with sand and they are actually a movable barrier

          6  that is supposed to prevent a terrorist car or van

          7  from crashing into one of our state or court

          8  buildings or something of that nature, and we have

          9  several deployed in the downtown area here. In fact,

         10  I can see one from my office window. And while we do

         11  get reimbursed from the federal government for --

         12  you know, everyone has their opinion of it, I would

         13  like to see my truck put somewhere else but --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Well, I

         15  thought it was kind of a plan for this big attack

         16  that we are all looking forward to, but I guess --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: All right? We

         18  are running a little late.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: One more

         20  question, Stanley.

         21                 What are we doing --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We are running

         23  over time.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Well, I

         25  know, but you take up some of our time.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: To

          4  encourage property owners in residential areas that

          5  do not have alternate side of the street parking to

          6  clean up around their residences, do we have any

          7  kind of an outreach program for that? Or is it

          8  because it is not alternate side we lose them? Is

          9  there a way that we can --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Are there places

         11  in the City without alternate side of the street

         12  parking?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Yes, there

         14  are, and I am not going to tell you where.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, I think we

         16  ought to find out. Equal protection of the laws.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: You know,

         18  I know you are doing commercial areas, but --

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: To be truthful,

         20  Council Member, it is a law that is on the books,

         21  and in fact I would like to say that I clean up the

         22  18 inches in front of my house, but actually my wife

         23  does.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Well, as

         25  long as somebody does.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, now that

          3  I am the Sanitation Commissioner I may have to take

          4  on that additional duty.

          5                 And responding primarily to

          6  complaints, we do serve summonses, after a warning.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: So, it is

          8  basically in response to --

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL:  Yes, this is

         10  not -- targeting residential owners is not, it is

         11  the kind of thing that unless a problem manifests

         12  itself, we don't address it.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay,

         14  thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Other than a

         16  commercial area, there are residential areas that

         17  don't have alternative side of the street parking?

         18                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Staten Island.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Has a survey

         20  been made by the home owners as to whether they want

         21  it or not?

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: In general --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am sure they

         24  would want it to clean their streets up.

         25                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: This would be
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          2  anecdotal of course, but in general they don't want

          3  it.

          4                 I personally am aware of a situation

          5  in Staten Island where the home owners --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The home owners

          7  mostly have parking garages, too, a lot of them.

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, in this

          9  particular case they have asked specifically for

         10  clean streets but don't want to -- you know, human

         11  nature being what it is. We are working with them to

         12  hopefully get voluntary compliance in terms of

         13  moving their cars.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I would assume,

         15  because if they keep the streets clean they can

         16  maintain --  if the streets aren't clean, the need

         17  their streets cleaned like everybody else.

         18                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The interesting

         19  thing of course, in the area that I am speaking of,

         20  they have the highest ratings in the City, so

         21  residential areas don't get as dirty obviously.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, that's

         23  good. If they are complying with the law that is

         24  good. But if they are not --

         25                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Absolutely.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Because the

          3  inconvenience of the alternate side of the street

          4  for the rest of the City is not very good, it is

          5  terrible.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: We also

          7  have areas, Stanley, where there are residences and

          8  there are times during the day where there are no

          9  cars in front of the house.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, that's

         11  good. As long as the bottom line is the streets are

         12  clean. As long as the streets are clean, fine. The

         13  objective here is not to inconvenience people, the

         14  whole objective is to keep the streets clean.

         15                 Okay, Mr. Fiala, from Staten Island.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Thank you, Mr.

         17  Chair.

         18                 We already have the dump, we will

         19  just leave alternate side of the street parking for

         20  another day.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Keep the streets

         22  clean, the streets are like everybody else.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: We will keep

         24  them clean.

         25                 Commissioner, welcome. Let me first
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          2  of all say I just reviewed the recycling campaign,

          3  the new ad campaign and the education campaign, I

          4  think it is great and I do agree with you that as we

          5  move toward promulgating universal recycling,

          6  hopefully those rates will go up. Once it is

          7  Citywide, I think we will see far greater compliance

          8  and we will be able to, I hope, meet the mandated

          9  tonnage.

         10                 Let me ask you two questions. The

         11  Fiscal Year 2000 budget appropriates 38 million

         12  toward Freshkill closure. Could you delineate that

         13  figure for me, across what action line? With

         14  specific emphasis on leachate control and gas

         15  collection.

         16                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: In this case,

         17  my expert, Deputy Commissioner Lawitts.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: These

         19  are landfill engineering people that are involved in

         20  the planning and engineering of the closure and post

         21  closure activities, and they were formerly capital,

         22  they were paid for by capital, but because the

         23  landfill is closing, the City determined that the

         24  shortened life of the landfill requires that they be

         25  charged to expense.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Okay, we have

          3  discussed this in several hearings. So this is just

          4  a shift from capital expense. All right, then I am

          5  well aware of what those figures are.

          6                 At the end of next month, section 67

          7  will cease to operate.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: That is

          9  correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Could you give

         11  me an idea as to how soon the residents around the

         12  mall area might be witnessing the permanent closure,

         13  either with the cover and the capping, and more

         14  importantly, I guess from their perspective, when

         15  will they be able to not have to deal with the

         16  noxious fumes emanating from that dump?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: I

         18  thought you were going to say breathe easier.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: When can they

         20  breathe easier?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: I think

         22  that we can see a significant improvement in the air

         23  quality such as you describe within six weeks to two

         24  months.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: From the June
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          2  date?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: That's

          4  correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Could you just

          6  elaborate on the gas collection plans for the dump?

          7  Where are we at and where are we going?

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I might bring

          9  up someone to bring the real details, but in fact,

         10  or just as a brief overview, while we quickly

         11  marshal our forces here, as you are well aware we

         12  are collecting the gas, it is a contract, it is a

         13  profit-making operation and with that, thank God

         14  Martha Hirst is here to address the question.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: I am

         16  sorry, Councilman, I will have to ask you to repeat

         17  the question.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Yes, I just

         19  wanted a little update on the gas collection

         20  situation at the dump.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: Sure. I

         22  guess in relation to the prior question about the

         23  closure of 67, you are interested in odor control

         24  there.

         25                 We have three flare stations
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          2  operating currently, including a flare station at

          3  section 67, and that is collecting a lot of gas from

          4  that area. Obviously odors still emanate from the

          5  working face from the south portion of 67, which is

          6  still open, so you will see a change right away when

          7  that area ceases to be the active face of the

          8  landfill, and closure work, in terms of final

          9  preparation work, begins.

         10                 But the flare station is in

         11  operation, and I think people in the mall area and

         12  up behind the mall and certainly in the area north

         13  of that area, or west I guess, northwest, would see

         14  significant change in odors this summer as compared

         15  to last.

         16                 With respect to the long-term plans

         17  for expansion of the collection and treatment plant,

         18  the concessionaire is just in the throws of

         19  submitting a permit application to State DEC, we all

         20  have a lot of experience with that and we know how

         21  long and complicated it is regrettably, but the

         22  application is in the works. We are working closely

         23  with the concessionaire, GSF, DEC is working closely

         24  with us, and that will be the next phase after

         25  flaring, as you know, of getting the plant expanded
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          2  and getting all the gas collected and beneficially

          3  reused.

          4                 But the flare stations are in place

          5  and they are all working extremely well.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: All right. A

          7  final question along those lines, best guesstimate,

          8  I realize it is difficult to do, but how much of the

          9  total gas emanating from the dump do we expect to be

         10  able to collect, 80 percent, 90 percent?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HIRST: We think

         12  upwards of 90 percent, there is a balance we have to

         13  strike between not drawing too much on the gas

         14  collection system so that you introduce oxygen into

         15  the system and then create the potential for fires.

         16  But we think over 95 percent will be collected.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: All right,

         18  thank you, Deputy Commissioner.

         19                 Thank you, Commissioner.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We have Council

         21  Member Freed.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Chair.

         24                 A question came up at an earlier

         25  hearing today, I had my contracts committee hearing,
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          2  and we were wondering, and I had asked the Mayor's

          3  Office on Contracts if they talked to Sanitation, so

          4  there is no object code in the contract budget for

          5  waste export and Sanitation's contractual spending

          6  is projected to increase about $40 million by next

          7  year. We were wondering if any of that is in the

          8  waste export, or if you have been working with OMB

          9  to develop a new object code for the contract budget

         10  for waste disposal or waste export?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         12  A budget code will be created for waste,

         13  specifically for waste export. Right now it is just

         14  part of the normal OTPS budget.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: When do you

         16  expect to be able to reflect that?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         18  I will have to get back with you. I don't know

         19  exactly, but I will get back to you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay, and

         21  another quick question.

         22                 We are talking about waste export. If

         23  phase three includes Manhattan, and since Manhattan

         24  does not have a transfer station, where will the

         25  garbage go for exportation?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Jersey. New

          3  Jersey.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: New Jersey. And

          5  the one thing, I think this was asked but I wasn't

          6  quite sure, to bring up the question of the

          7  alternate side of the street parking and how the

          8  cleaning will be done?

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The question

         10  was how is -- I believe the question was   how is

         11  the street cleaning done without alternate side of

         12  the street cleaning, and the answer is with great

         13  difficulty.

         14                 I don't mean to be trite. We try to

         15  work with affected areas to look for voluntary

         16  compliance, on a specific day we will come in and

         17  clean the street.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Because I know

         19  like in Lower Manhattan, if you can't get into the

         20  curve, you can really tell the difference. And we

         21  have another problem, which is one of the reasons

         22  why some people down here would be in favor of

         23  suspending that simply because it would create more

         24  parking space, but on the other hand the problem is

         25  there are too many of the special permits and I
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          2  would say that about a third of Lower Manhattan has

          3  cars with special permits which is one of the

          4  reasons why even with alternate sides of the street

          5  parking we have cleaning problems.

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, I am not

          7  so sure that I can speak to this problem as

          8  Sanitation Commissioner, but it is my impression,

          9  both from having a special permit, and enforcing the

         10  laws, that these special permit areas have been

         11  severely restricted, and are in fact compliant.

         12                 I believe the street cleaning, or the

         13  condition of the streets here in Lower Manhattan has

         14  been fairly high, based on our Score Card operation,

         15  but those areas where you use special permits, many

         16  times are commuter areas. I mean, that is an area

         17  where someone with a special permit parks their car

         18  when they come into work. Those are especially

         19  permitted blocks also and we give them, you know, as

         20  much attention as we can.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Maybe we should

         22  have a discussion of that.

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I would be

         24  happy to discuss that, sure.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Because one of
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          2  the biggest problems downtown, or one of the things

          3  that drives downtown residents the craziest, and in

          4  fact one of the local newspapers just had an article

          5  on the problems with special permits parking

          6  literally all over the area and how much, it is like

          7  one of the most hated things going on downtown,

          8  because basically the special permits take up so

          9  much of the regular parking that there is no room

         10  for residents.

         11                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes, I

         12  understand the complaint. I would be happy to meet

         13  with you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay, good.

         15  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Just to follow

         17  up very quickly on that, with respect to the

         18  question that was asked on the export, the export

         19  contracts, that is in the contracting budget, we are

         20  not talking about a budget line, we are talking

         21  about an object line. In the budgeting contracts

         22  they use object, the term object code. You answered

         23  budget to that question, you meant object code?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         25  I think the question was, would there be an object
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          2  code for waste export, and the answer is that there

          3  will be.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right. But you

          5  used the term budget. You meant object.

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          7  Yes, I'm sorry.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: With respect to

          9  the Sanitation, the exportation from Manhattan, that

         10  was a question that was asked by Council Member

         11  Freed also. There are no transfer stations, that

         12  will be directly transported to New Jersey?

         13                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And they will be

         15  using Sanitation trucks?

         16                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And has that

         18  contract been awarded yet?

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Not yet.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: When is it

         21  expected that contract will be awarded?

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: It will be in

         23  place by October.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What is the cost

         25  of that going to be?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: By October.

          3  October of this year.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Do you have any

          5  idea what the cost is going to be?

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Offhand, no.

          7  But I can provide that to you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Give me all of

          9  the information on that. If you could, we would

         10  appreciate it.

         11                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: We expect about

         12  $30 million. But I can get you more specific

         13  figures.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Get us

         15  everything you can about it.

         16                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Sure.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Eristoff.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Thank you,

         19  Mr. Chairman.

         20                 Welcome, Commissioner. Just a couple

         21  of questions concerning some of your agency's

         22  technology initiatives.

         23                 It is my understanding that the

         24  support services division has been upgrading its

         25  local area and wide area networks now for a couple
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          2  of years, and according to my notes, there was about

          3  700,000 in the Fiscal '98 budget, and I am wondering

          4  whether that project is still ongoing and how much

          5  was budgeted for the next fiscal year?

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: We are

          7  switching teams.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Special

          9  teams.

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Delacort in for

         11  Lawitts.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELACORT: That

         13  project is still undergoing. I believe it will be

         14  completed around October.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: How much?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELACORT: I will

         17  get back to you but I believe that figure is

         18  correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: If I could

         20  get maybe a breakdown for how much was expected or

         21  spent for '98/'99 and 2000.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELACORT:

         23  Certainly. No problem.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: So, you

         25  expect to complete by October?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELACORT: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: The IVR

          4  system that your Sanitation Action Center is working

          5  on, I understand that the Department completed phase

          6  2 in April.

          7                 Are there other phases? And what is

          8  the budget for that project?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELACORT: That

         10  project is complete. It was completed last year, and

         11  it provides 24 hours a day automated information. A

         12  resident can key in his or her address and

         13  automatically get the refuse and recycling

         14  collection schedules. In addition, if we are running

         15  any special neighborhood-based programs, they can

         16  get that information automatically.

         17                 It also provides for the automatic

         18  faxing back of selected publication by keying in

         19  your fax number.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: That's

         21  great. How much does it cost?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELACORT: I don't

         23  have that figure, we can get that for you. It was

         24  paid for out of the Mayor's technology fund.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Sure. I
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          2  would be interested to know, because other agencies

          3  could certainly benefit from your experience.

          4                 Year 2000, my understanding was that

          5  you had budgeted a total of 1.1 million over a

          6  couple of years for remediation work; is that still

          7  the budget, and how much are you rolling from '99 to

          8  2000?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELACORT: The

         10  budget was 1.1 million, in the Preliminary Budget we

         11  gave back about 150,000 of that because the contract

         12  is proceeding at less cost than we had initially

         13  anticipated.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay, so how

         15  much has been spent so far and how much are you

         16  going to spend next fiscal year?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELACORT: I would

         18  have to get back to you on that as well.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay. I do

         21  appreciate it. Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Commissioner, in

         23  your statement you said that you allocated

         24  approximately $75.5 million for the Department's

         25  recycling program, what was the amount that you
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          2  allocated last year?

          3                 The reason I ask is we don't have any

          4  unit of appropriation for recycling. There is no way

          5  of knowing what it is. I know you think it is about

          6  time we had a unit of appropriation for recycling.

          7  After all of this time, after the laws have been

          8  passed and everything is done, we are hoping that

          9  since you are new here you will lead the charge to

         10  say, look, recycling is a wholly-owned subsidiary in

         11  the Department of Sanitation, and therefore we

         12  should have a recycling unit of appropriation.

         13                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, I am not

         14  sure what the history of this issue is, Council

         15  member, but the way you say it, I am in favor of it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We should have

         17  it. I mean, it is ridiculous, we have to ask you --

         18  you say 75.5 million for the recycling program, but

         19  I don't know what it was last year, because

         20  everybody has a different way of figuring it.

         21                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: According to my

         22  figures it was 76.9 last year.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It was 76.9.

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And we would
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          2  like also to have it to be broken down also into

          3  separate unit of recycling waste prevention as well.

          4  How else do we have accountability on this? It is

          5  very important.

          6                 Mr. Rodriguez.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Thank you,

          8  Mr. Chairman.

          9                 I have a few questions on the interim

         10  plan, the long-term plan, the closure plan, a couple

         11  of plans.

         12                 These are budget questions. How much

         13  do we pay now per ton or average on the interim

         14  plan?

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Fifty-six

         16  dollars a ton would be the average, Councilman.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Right. And

         18  how much more, if it is more than the long-term plan

         19  we estimate it to be?

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The prices on

         21  the long-term plan are averaging out between $77 and

         22  $80 a ton.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So the

         24  long-term plan is much more expensive than the

         25  interim plan.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes, it is.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay.

          4                 I guess each borough is going to have

          5  one central location in which all of the trucks are

          6  going to go to, except for Manhattan, which is going

          7  to have a site in New Jersey; is that correct?

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The marine

          9  transfer stations.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: No, no, for

         11  the interim site.

         12                 For the interim plan --

         13                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Oh, I am sorry.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Right.

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Manhattan goes

         16  to Jersey on the Interim Plan, that's correct.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And all of

         18  the other boroughs go to one central location? Is

         19  that accurate?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         21  In the Borough of the Bronx, they go to the one

         22  location. In the Borough of Brooklyn there are two

         23  locations in Community Board 1.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: In the same

         25  community, right.
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          3  But that doesn't handle all of the Brooklyn.

          4  Brooklyn generates 3,900 tons a day and

          5  approximately 1,900 to 2000 tons a day is going to

          6  the two Brooklyn sites. So there is still more

          7  garbage in Brooklyn that needs to be exported.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: When will

          9  that go into an interim plan?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         11  Probably next year or the year after.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay.

         13                 Have we determined the environmental

         14  impact of the interim plan on the communities that

         15  are involved?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         17  Before we can award a contract, environmental review

         18  has to be done and a negative declaration has to be

         19  declared.

         20                 So, for each of the two export

         21  contracts currently in place, environmental reviews

         22  have been done, completed and a determination made

         23  that there is no impact on the community, and as a

         24  result of that we were able to go forward and enter

         25  into contracts with the companies we are now doing
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          2  business with.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So you are

          4  suggesting there is no negative impact on the

          5  communities as a result of the interim plans?

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          7  That's correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So, why are

          9  we looking for a long-term plan that is going to

         10  cost twice the money almost?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         12  Because the long-term plan will minimize, if not

         13  eliminate, the need for truck traffic. The long-term

         14  plan envisions garbage being exported via barges or

         15  rail, and thereby eliminating, or at the very least,

         16  minimizing the need for trucks, large tractor

         17  trailers to be exporting garbage out of New York

         18  City.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So then you

         20  are saying that trucks is a negative impact? So

         21  there is some negative impact, that is what I was

         22  trying to ask.

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         24  It is a negative impact when they converge on any

         25  one intersection and exceed appropriate levels. If
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          2  they don't exceed a level, then it is not a negative

          3  impact.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Are they

          5  currently exceeding that level that you are talking

          6  about?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          8  No.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So again I

         10  go back to, so you are saying there is no negative

         11  impact, but we are paying $56 for a plan and we are

         12  looking to create another plan that is going to cost

         13  $77 a plan, which is $20 more, which is about 40

         14  percent more over the life of this plan, and you are

         15  saying there is no impact on the community. So, I am

         16  saying, if there is no impact, if that is accurate,

         17  why are we looking for a plan? I am saying we have a

         18  plan, that is what it sounds like to me.

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: What we are

         20  really saying, I believe, Council Member, is that

         21  the long-term plan would be an improvement. It may

         22  cost more, but it is an improvement.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, have

         24  you done a comprehensive environmental impact

         25  statement on all of the plans together? Because you
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          2  may do a one-on-one plan here on 2,000 tons, and

          3  another one on 2,000 tons here, but when all is said

          4  and done, by the end of this year I think you said

          5  there would be about 7,000 tons a day?

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Sixty-three

          7  hundred.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Sixty-nine

          9  I thought you said. Okay, 6,300, we will use that

         10  number.

         11                 Have we done an environmental impact

         12  statement on the 6,000 tons a day that is going to

         13  be going through our streets? Have we looked at

         14  that?

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: There are plans

         16  to do that study. It is in the scoping document.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Oh, okay.

         18  Great.

         19                 You came here a couple of weeks ago,

         20  and you made it clear, Commissioner, that you had a

         21  commitment to close not only Freshkills on time, but

         22  Freshkills early.

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I said I have a

         24  commitment to close Freshkills on time and that I

         25  would prefer to close it early, yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay. I am

          3  sorry if I misunderstood that. So, you are going to

          4  try to close Freshkills early?

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: If the

          6  opportunity presents itself, yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay.

          8                 Are there any additional costs

          9  associated with closing Freshkills early?

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I haven't had

         11  the opportunity to close it yet, but when they do,

         12  when that opportunity presents itself, I will know

         13  the costs then.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: You

         15  presented us with a plan for an RFEI, for

         16  retrofitting MTS's. You also stated that you hope

         17  that that RFEI would lead to an RFP or you expected

         18  it to, for retrofitting of MTS's. Your agency came

         19  to the conclusion after many of the activists saying

         20  for many years that retrofitting the MTS's was

         21  possible, that it is now possible, but all this

         22  said, it looks like a possibility that a long-term

         23  plan for the disposing of garbage is currently -- I

         24  will use the word unclear.

         25                 Have you thought of the impact that
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          2  it will have on the budget, having an unclear

          3  closing plan to date?

          4                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I don't think

          5  the plan is unclear at all.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So, what

          7  you are saying is that the long-term plan that we

          8  saw from the Mayor a month ago that says that there

          9  will be two sites in New Jersey for receiving our

         10  garbage, the long-term site plan that is included,

         11  an EBUF in Red Hook, all of those are in place but

         12  you are asking people to apply for an RFP, to

         13  respond to an RFP; how can you give somebody a

         14  long-term contract for 20 years and ask someone

         15  else, or not even someone else, ask those same

         16  companies to respond to an RFP and expect to get a

         17  response?

         18                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I didn't ask

         19  for an RFP.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's correct.

         21  He has only asked for an RFEI.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay. Did

         23  you expect to get an RFP as a result of this RFEI?

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I can't tell

         25  the future.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: All right? Okay?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Just one

          4  more question, just to wrap up on the EIS.

          5                 I guess by the end of next year, when

          6  will we have I guess about 10,000 or 12,000 tons in

          7  the interim plan, I guess by the end of next year?

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Two years I

          9  believe.

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FARRELL:

         11  About two years from now.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: About two

         13  years from now, okay.

         14                 And we will do -- you say you have it

         15  in the scoping to have an EIS done? Would that be

         16  completed and done before then?

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The scoping

         18  document talks about the long-term plan. Is that

         19  what we are talking about?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I am asking

         21  about an EIS that will go out there and address the

         22  concerns of the impact on the communities with

         23  regard to the interim plan.

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Each part of

         25  the interim plan is evaluated separately, is that
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          2  what you are referring to?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Separate

          4  EIS' for each short interim plan, and then someone

          5  suggested there that you have, in some scoping

          6  document, at some point you will have a

          7  comprehensive EIS that will cover all of the interim

          8  plans, and I am asking if that will be ready before

          9  we have 10,000 or 12,000 tons of garbage rumbling

         10  through our streets?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         12  Let me try to explain it as clearly as I can.

         13                 For the interim plan there are

         14  separate environmental assessment statements reviews

         15  being done for each borough, each borough at a time,

         16  for each year of the interim plan.

         17                 For the long-term plan, draft scoping

         18  document is going to do a full environmental impact

         19  statement on exporting the entire 13,000 tons of the

         20  City's waste each and every day.

         21                 So, for the long-term plan, there

         22  will be a full EIS that will be completed.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So the answer is

         24  you are not doing EIS's for short, for the interim

         25  plan?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          3  That's correct.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You mentioned

          5  you are not doing EIS.

          6                 Okay, thank you very much, Mr.

          7  Rodriguez.

          8                 Also, getting back to this, we had

          9  written you a letter last week, I think it was last

         10  week, asking you to -- calling for an RFP on the

         11  retrofitting of MTS's. Are you ready to answer that

         12  question, or are you going to give us an answer to

         13  that letter?

         14                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I can't give

         15  you a final decision, but I will say --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Time is of the

         17  essence, as we say under the law.

         18                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Time is of the

         19  essence. We will have a preliminary meeting with

         20  anyone who wants to respond to the RFEI in two

         21  weeks. Two weeks from this date.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Two weeks, and

         23  then you will have a decision as to whether or not

         24  you will go for an RFP?

         25                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I expect to
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          2  have more information --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And you will

          4  share that information with us?

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I certainly

          6  will.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And we will try

          8  to expedite it as quickly as possible, if the

          9  decision is to do an RFP, to do an RFP as quickly as

         10  possible.

         11                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Leffler.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: We would like

         14  to recognize and introduce the children in the

         15  gallery who are from PS 46, from Bayside. They are

         16  part of two 4th grade classes, whose teachers, Ross

         17  Zackaroff and Ann Molita are also here.

         18                 Welcome. This is a budget hearing

         19  today, we now have the Commissioner Farrell from the

         20  Sanitation Department and Assistant Commissioners,

         21  and other top officials from the Sanitation

         22  Department. We are going over the proposed budgets

         23  with respect to refuse collection and recycling and

         24  snow removal and the like. And after they are

         25  finished, and we are just about finished, will come
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          2  the City's Department of Environmental Protection.

          3                 So, we hope you will follow this

          4  closely and I will speak to you outside when you

          5  have to leave.

          6                 I have one final question,

          7  Commissioner, and that is, when you were here about

          8  a week ago, we had testimony from a group called

          9  Inform with respect to proposals for waste

         10  reduction. You have a brief reference in the

         11  preliminary budget message to increasing waste

         12  reduction, but no details, what are you planning to

         13  do with respect to it? Are you planning to implement

         14  Inform's recommendations?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How much is in

         16  the budget for it.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Yes, how

         18  much, and what are you planning to do with it?

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: There are no

         20  funds in the budget for waste reduction.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: But you seem

         22  to suggest that you are planning to increase

         23  reduction.

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Increasing

         25  recycling, I believe we are reducing waste, are we
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          2  not?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Actually you are

          4  down, according to your figures, by $1.4 million for

          5  recycling. The last year was 76.9 you said, and then

          6  75.5, so you are down 1.4 million for recycling.

          7                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: For the

          8  recycling budget, in terms of education. I mean, we

          9  don't put up posters day in and day out in the same

         10  neighborhoods. I mean, as we see one area educated,

         11  we can then move on to the next area.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: There are a

         13  good number of recommendations out there for waste

         14  reduction that we are following through on, at least

         15  addressing them.

         16                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, to be

         17  truthful, I am not aware of those specific

         18  recommendations, but I would be happy to review

         19  them.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Do you know

         21  whether or not your recycling budget includes money

         22  for waste reduction, that you just haven't broken

         23  down?

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No. It doesn't.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: It seems to
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          2  me this is an area that we have been interested in

          3  over the years, a respected group like Inform has

          4  recommendations. Why don't you get a copy. They were

          5  presented at the last meeting, and address them.

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I will get a

          7  copy.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Thank you.

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I was told that

         10  there was some misunderstanding about something I

         11  said earlier. Let me just say once more that the

         12  business, the short-term interim plan about where

         13  waste will go to New Jersey, that is one of the

         14  proposals, one of the possibilities; however, no

         15  decision has actually been made yet in terms of

         16  where that waste goes. So someone on the Council did

         17  ask me where was it going --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: It was

         19  Council Member Freed.

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I said New

         21  Jersey, and I was wrong. The decision has not been

         22  made yet. That was one of the proposals.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Sabini.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Just two quick
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          2  things. To elaborate on what Council Member Leffler

          3  said, and I was a little distressed at your answer.

          4  Waste reduction is not recycling. You know, we

          5  passed a very large comprehensive solid waste

          6  management plan in 1992, one of the Hallmarks of

          7  Commissioner Lloyd's plan was that to make the

          8  slices of the waste pie more manageable reduced the

          9  size of the pie, and there are lots of ways of doing

         10  that, including we have legislation to change the

         11  way certain packages are done and things like that.

         12  But the State of New York expects us to reduce the

         13  size of the waste pie. That is what we submitted to

         14  them, and we really do have to take steps to do

         15  that, even though it always seems to be at the end

         16  of the decision trend.

         17                 I just want to ask one other

         18  budgetary question. As Chairman of the Subcommittee

         19  on Public Siting for the Council, we undertook under

         20  your predecessor's insistence, a campaign to extend

         21  the lease terms of a number of sanitation garages

         22  where you expect to be building new facilities. The

         23  problem had been that many of those garages, the

         24  temporary locations were on year-to-year leases and

         25  the owner that you were releasing from knew that you
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          2  were going to be there year-to-year and so therefore

          3  they would jack up the rent exponentially, and the

          4  local Council member would only give you a one-year

          5  lease because they never believed that you would

          6  ever be out of there and we negotiated in good faith

          7  in a number of sites with the local members to have

          8  your Department promise them that you would be using

          9  the sites eventually and putting shovels into the

         10  ground, and in return for that the term of the lease

         11  would be extended a little so that it wouldn't cost

         12  the taxpayers enormous amounts of money.

         13                 I am just wondering, do you have a

         14  dollar figure on how much we have saved by those

         15  long-term leases?  Since the Subcommittee doesn't

         16  have a budgetary hearing dealing specifically with

         17  your agency, this is the most appropriate forum to

         18  ask it.

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Obviously, I

         20  don't have that. But it is a very good question, and

         21  I am interested in the answer myself. I will get

         22  back to you with it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Because I

         24  think that it has been the thing that we have worked

         25  very positively and in collaboration with the
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          2  Mayor's Office and Commissioner Doherty, and I would

          3  just like to know cumulatively what the savings are,

          4  and also if we are not to have another hearing to

          5  revisit it, but have we moved forward in each and

          6  every case with the time line of the acquisition of

          7  the new property or the building of the new property

          8  that we expected, I would like to get that from you.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 There are some questions that remain

         13  unanswered, and I would hope that you would give me

         14  some answers.

         15                 One of the questions I would like to

         16  know is the issue of, and you can give it to me

         17  later, you don't have to tell me now, either an IFA

         18  adjustment totaling 1.5 million Fiscal Year 2000 and

         19  the outyears, I would like to get an explanation for

         20  the Committee as to what that represents.

         21                 Also, I want to know how the

         22  anti-dumping campaign, to give me some information

         23  on the anti-dumping campaign, and also it seems to

         24  be a budget savings of 490,000 in fiscal 2000 and

         25  the outyears for redeploying staff in the Lot
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          2  Cleaning Program to the Bureau of Cleaning and

          3  Collection, and why are you transferring these six

          4  positions to the Bureau of Cleaning and Collection?

          5  What is the impact going to be on the Lot Cleaning

          6  Program? And in Fiscal 2000, how many positions will

          7  be devoted to lot cleaning? That has always been a

          8  very important issue to us, lot cleaning and

          9  anti-dumping.

         10                 And finally, according to your

         11  testimony, the recycling budget, as I said before,

         12  has been cut by 1.4 million, despite the fact that

         13  we have paying increased rates for waste export.

         14  Which programs and positions are being reduced as a

         15  result of this cut, and how is this going to affect

         16  weekly recycling that we are now implementing?

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The reduction

         18  will not at all affect weekly recycling. A

         19  processing cost.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So, the

         21  processing cost has been increased, but your budget

         22  has been decreased. Can you get us the figures on

         23  that? And what programs are you eliminating,

         24  reducing some programs? Because the figures don't

         25  add up.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELACORT: The

          3  biggest cause of the reduction in the recycling

          4  budget from this year to next year is a decrease in

          5  the budget for processing cost. There is an

          6  assumption in the Fiscal Year 2000 budget that the

          7  prices we pay our processors to take our material

          8  will be lower next year than they have been this

          9  year.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What do you base

         11  that on?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELACORT: Based

         13  on our forecast of the market for the recyclables.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Your forecast,

         15  or your study of the market.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELACORT: Our

         17  study of the industry forecast.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And are there

         19  any sources that you have for that study?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELACORT: And the

         21  fact that the recycling contracts, with the current

         22  processors are going to be expiring in the next

         23  year, that they are being put out for bid, and that

         24  we expect and have budgeted for those bids to be

         25  lower than the current prices that are being charged
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          2  to us.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Is it based on

          4  some studies that have been made? Or is it based on

          5  what the market conditions are? Or perhaps the

          6  Chicago Exchange where they actually trade in

          7  recycling materials, have you been watching that?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELACORT: Based

          9  on the market information that we collect every week

         10  and our forecast resulting from that market

         11  information we have been collecting.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

         13                 Thank you very much. We appreciate

         14  your being here.

         15                 Oh, I am sorry, Kathryn Freed has one

         16  last question.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you. I am

         18  sorry, it is just that when I had asked you about

         19  Manhattan and phase 3 and you said New Jersey, I was

         20  concerned about that. But now that you are telling

         21  me that decision hasn't been made, I am even more

         22  concerned.

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The contract

         24  hasn't been awarded.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: I beg your
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          2  pardon?

          3                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The contract

          4  has not been awarded.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: In the phase 3

          6  area, basically you are supposed to stop picking up

          7  or taking Manhattan's garbage I guess in October.

          8  So, we are four and a half months away, and yet you

          9  don't know where it is going to --

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, I can't

         11  say that we are locked into a contract. I can't tell

         12  you that it is absolutely certain.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Well, if you

         14  are not going to Jersey, what are the other options

         15  that you are looking at?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         17  We have got a number of bids in and we are

         18  evaluating all of those bids right now, and earlier

         19  when we mentioned about Jersey from Manhattan,

         20  Jersey had submitted a bid to take some of the

         21  City's waste. So, we are evaluating all of the bids

         22  right now, we are inspecting the stations of that

         23  bid to make sure they can receive our trucks and

         24  they are properly permitted, and also the price.

         25                 Part of the evaluation process is our
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          2  cost to transport the waste to a facility, so we

          3  marry up the bid price with our transportation

          4  costs, and then we figure out what is the lowest

          5  price to the City, and then based on that

          6  evaluation, a determination will be made. We have

          7  yet to make that determination, but will certainly

          8  before October.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Well, to get

         10  back to some of your earlier remarks, you had --

         11  when there were questions about the impact on the

         12  communities and you basically said that if they

         13  violate the Clean Air Act, for, you know, lack of a

         14  better term, then there is a negative impact.

         15                 What I am concerned about,

         16  particularly if you are going to truck to New Jersey

         17  or wherever you are going to be trucked, right now

         18  Manhattan is the only non-attainment, you know, is

         19  the only borough that is a non-attainment area, we

         20  have areas such as Canal Street, which coincidently

         21  lead to the Holland Tunnel, upper Manhattan, which

         22  would lead to the George Washington Bridge, and my

         23  guess is maybe even around the Lincoln Tunnel, but

         24  that are already in violation of the Clean Air Act.

         25  In fact, Canal Street, to the extent that we monitor
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          2  is always in violation of the Clean Air Act, so when

          3  you look at these, are you also going to be taking

          4  that into consideration because we have too many

          5  trucks already in our streets and you know we are

          6  already suing on the trucks going through to

          7  Brooklyn for the commercial waste. So, are you

          8  taking that into consideration?

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         10  Yes, we are. We have an outside consulting firm who

         11  specializes in these type of reviews, and also it

         12  depends on what time of day our trucks would use

         13  either the Lincoln, the Holland, or the George

         14  Washington Bridge. But we do have a consultant on

         15  board whose specialty is looking at these very

         16  issues.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: You are telling

         18  me that will be -- because quite frankly, because

         19  you do have a monitoring station on Canal Street, we

         20  know that we are always in the red. I mean, maybe

         21  somewhere at 3:00 a.m. on a very windy day we are

         22  not, but generally speaking we are.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: To be continued,

         24  okay?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: And then the
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          2  last question was, do you have any idea what the

          3  cost would be if you are going to put the personal

          4  services cost, if we are going to actually have our

          5  trucks and our sanitation workers, or we will be

          6  manning it to go out to Jersey? How many additional

          7  personnel, how many additional trucks?

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That is all

          9  part of the evaluation. We have what we call a

         10  transportation model that figures the personnel

         11  cost, as well as the cost of the equipment. And it

         12  comes -- we look at it as part of the overall cost,

         13  I mean it is considered.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: And you are

         15  still convinced you are making the four and a month

         16  -- by October you will have something in place?

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL:   Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay. Thank you

         19  very much. And the assurance is that that money is

         20  in the current budget to do that? In the fiscal year

         21  budget?

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: For 2000?

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, thank you
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          2  very much, Commissioner. To be continued.

          3                 We will go right into the Department

          4  of Environmental Protection. We are running late.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 12:10 p.m.)

          6

          7

          8

          9

         10

         11

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            114

          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 10th day of May 1999.

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            115

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24                 -----------------------

                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410
